
 
 
                                                                                                                                           City Hall 
                                                                                                                 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244 
           BOARD of SUPERVISORS                                                                  San Francisco 94102-4689 
                                                                                                                                    Tel. No. 554-5184 
                                                                                                                                    Fax No. 554-5163 
                                                                                                                               TDD/TTY No. 554-5227 
 
 

 

 
September 26, 2018 

 
 
Planning Commission  
Attn:  Jonas Ionin 
1650 Mission Street, Ste. 400 
San Francisco, CA  94103 
 
Dear Commissioners: 
 
On September 18, 2018, Recreation and Parks Department introduced the following legislation: 
 

File No.  180886 
 

Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 171-00, which set aside certain real property 
in Margaret S. Hayward Playground for the Department of Emergency 
Management (“DEM”) for the Combined Emergency Communications Center 
(“CECC”) at 1011 Turk Street, to provide DEM additional real property directly 
adjacent to the existing CECC and to restore to the Recreation and Park 
Department certain subsurface real property to the east of the CECC that was 
previously allocated to DEM; setting aside for DEM an additional portion of 
Hayward Playground west of the CECC that is currently occupied by two tennis 
courts for a proposed new DEM building, subject to various terms and conditions, 
as defined herein; affirming the Planning Department’s determination under the 
California Environmental Quality Act; and making findings of consistency with the 
General Plan, and the eight priority policies of Planning Code, Section 101.1. 
 

The proposed ordinance is being transmitted pursuant to Planning Code, Section 302(b), for 
public hearing and recommendation.  The ordinance is pending before the Land Use and 
Transportation Committee and will be scheduled for hearing upon receipt of your response. 

 
 Angela Calvillo, Clerk of the Board 

        
 By:  Erica Major, Assistant Clerk 
        Land Use and Transportation Committee 
 
c: John Rahaim, Director of Planning 
 Aaron Starr, Acting Manager of Legislative Affairs 
 Scott Sanchez, Zoning Administrator 
 Lisa Gibson, Environmental Review Officer 
 AnMarie Rodgers, Director of Citywide Planning 
 Laura Lynch, Environmental Planning 
 Joy Navarrete, Environmental Planning 
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LEGISLATIVE DIGEST 
 

[Boundary Modification and Conditional Allocation of Real Property - Margaret S. Hayward 
Playground - Department of Emergency Management] 
 
Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 171-00, which set aside certain real property in 
Margaret S. Hayward Playground for the Department of Emergency Management 
(“DEM”) for the Combined Emergency Communications Center (“CECC”) at 1011 Turk 
Street, to provide DEM additional real property directly adjacent to the existing CECC 
and to restore to the Recreation and Park Department certain subsurface real property 
to the east of the CECC that was previously allocated to DEM; setting aside for DEM an 
additional portion of Hayward Playground west of the CECC that is currently occupied 
by two tennis courts for a proposed new DEM building, subject to various terms and 
conditions, as defined herein; affirming the Planning Department’s determination under 
the California Environmental Quality Act; and making findings of consistency with the 
General Plan, and the eight priority policies of Planning Code, Section 101.1. 
 

Existing Law 
 
The Charter allows the Board of Supervisors to select and set aside, by ordinance, real 
property in the Margaret S. Hayward Playground for the construction of buildings and related 
improvements for a central communications center to help respond to City-wide emergencies.  
Most recently, Ordinance No. 171-00 set aside certain property in the Hayward Playground for 
the Department of Emergency Management (“DEM”) to operate a Combined Emergency 
Communications Center (the "CECC") at 1011 Turk Street.  This set-aside included the 
transfer of an area directly east of the CECC (the “Recreation Facilities Site”) to the 
Recreation and Park Commission, subject to the right of DEM to use a portion of the 
subsurface space under the Recreation Facilities Site (the “Additional Area for CECC”). 
 

Amendments to Current Law 
 
The ordinance would modify the current allocation of real property in the Hayward Playground 
by extending the boundary of the DEM property approximately 16 feet to the south and 
approximately 29 feet to the east (the “CECC Expansion”), and by restoring those portions of 
the subsurface Additional Area for CECC that lie outside the CECC Expansion area to the 
Recreation and Park Department (“RPD”).  DEM will have surface and subsurface rights over 
the entire CECC Expansion area, and RPD will have surface and subsurface rights over the 
rest of the Hayward Playground.  This modification will allow DEM to establish a security 
perimeter around the CECC, and will improve RPD’s ability to use the Recreation Facilities 
Site for recreational purposes. 
 
In addition, the ordinance would conditionally set aside additional real property adjacent to 
and west of the CECC so that DEM can construct a new building there (the “New Building”).  
This portion of the Hayward Playground currently features two tennis courts that are managed 
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by RPD.  The transfer of this property to DEM would occur only if the City were to adopt a 
resolution by June 30, 2028 finding that DEM has secured sufficient funding to pay for the 
proposed New Building and that RPD and DEM have come to an agreement concerning the 
acquisition or funding of two replacement tennis courts.  The agreement concerning the tennis 
courts would be subject to the approval of the Recreation and Park Commission following any 
required environmental review.  If these conditions of transfer are not met, then the transfer of 
this property for the New Building would not occur. 
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